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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Panchshil Corporate Park Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Panchshil Corporate Park Private
Limited (“the Company"), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2024, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement
and the Statement ot Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In-our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2024, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the '‘Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements' section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
reguirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

The Director’s report is not made available to us at the date of this auditor’s report. We have
nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibility ol Manaycinent fur Lhe Financlal Stalements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irreqularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ablility to contlnue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Coampany nr tn rease aperations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Roard of Nirectars is alsn respansihle for averseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

> Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company'’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the "Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books except -

That the back-up for books of account maintained in servers physically located
in India for two software used in the hotel business was not kept on a daily basis
from April 01, 2023 to December 31, 2023 and in respect of another two
software used in the hotel business which are operated by third party service
providers for which, in the absence of evidence in the Service Organisation
Controls report, we are unable to comment on whether the backup of books of
account and other books and papers in respect of such software maintained in
electronic mode has been maintained on a daily basis on servers physically
located in India; and

iM. for the matters stated in the paragraph (i) (vi) below on reporting under Rule
11(Q).

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity deait
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account:
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(d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards

specified under Sectinn 133 of the Art, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended, specified under section 133 of the Act:

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2024 Irom beinyg appointed as a director In terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act:

() The modificalion relaling Lo the mainlenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in paragraph 2 (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and
paragraph (i) (vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g).

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure 2" to this report;

(h) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2024:

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audil and Audilursy Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements - Refer Note 33C to the financial statements:

ii. ~ The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses:

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. @) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
other than as disclosed in the note 52 to the financial statements, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Iintermediaries"), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (“Uitimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any
material misstatement.

V. Theinterim dividend declared and paid by the Company during the year is in
accordance with section 123 of the Act.
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vi.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software except that audit trail feature is
not enabled for certain changes made, if any, using privileged/ administrative access
rights, as described in note 54 to the financial statements. Further, during the course
of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampéred
with, in respect of accounting software(s) where the audit trail has been enabled.
Further, the Company has used three accounting software in the hotel business which
are operated by third-party software service providers. In the absence of any
observations on audit trail feature in the respective Service Organization Controls
(SOC) reports, we are unable to comment on whether audit trail feature of these
software were enabled and operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in these software or whether there were any instances of the audit trail
feature being tampered with.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants

Membership Number: 136969
UDIN: 24136969BKFGTZ2012
Place of Signature: Pune

Date: August 19, 2024

afa Saleem

egistration Number: 324982E/E300003
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and
regulatory requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Panchshil Corporate Park Private Limited (the “Company’)
In terms of the information and cxplanalions soughl by us and given by the company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and Lo Uie besl of

our knowledge and beliel, we state that:

(i) (@(A)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Praoperty, Plant and Equipment.

(i)(@)B)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible

assets.
) (b) Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management
during the year and no material discrepancies were identified on such verification.
() ©) The title deeds of all the immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.
() (d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible

assets during the year ended March 31, 2024, and accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(i (e) Based on the information and explanations given to us, there are no proceedings
initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the
Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.
Accordingly, requirement to report on clause 3(i)e) of the Order is not applicable to
the company.

(i) @) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable
intervals during the year. In our opinion the coverage and the procedure of such
verification by the management is appropriate. Discrepancies of 10% or more in
aggregate for each class of inventory were not noticed during such physical
verification.

@in ) As disclosed in note 16 to the financial statements, the Company has been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks
during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company. However,
no quarterly returns/ statements are required to be filed by the Company.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(iii) (a) During the year the Company has provided loans, advances in nature of loans to
parties other than subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates as follows:
- Rs. (In Lacs)
Advances in nature
. Loan to
Particulars . of loans to
Companies

employees

Aggregate amount granted during the 43,123.97 5.85

year

Balance outstanding as at balance 14,753.97 15.20

sheet date
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(i) (b)

(iii) (c)

(i (d)

(i) (e)

@i (5

(iv)

(v)

Other than the above the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature
of loans, stood guarantee or provided security to firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties.

During the year, the investments made and the terms and conditions of the grant of
loans to companies and advance in the nature of loans to employees are not
prejudicial to the Company's interest.

Since, the Company has not provided guarantees, provided security and granted
loans and advances in the nature of loans to any other entities/parties, other than
mentioned above, the requirement to report on clause 3(iiXb), 3(ii)c), 3iiXd),
3(iii)(e) and 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company in respect of any
entities/parties other than mentioned above.

The Company has granted advances in the nature of loans to employees during the
year where the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been
stipulated and the repayment or receipts are regular. Company has granted loans to
Companies where the schedule of repayment of principal and repayment of interest
has not been stipulated and are repayable on demand. Hence, we are unable to
make a specific comment on the regularity of repayment of principal and payment of
interest in respect of such loans.

There are no amounts of loans granted to companies and advances in the nature of
loans granted to employees which are overdue for more than ninety days.

There were no loans granted to companies or advance in the nature of loan granted
to employees which had fallen due during the year, that have been renewed or
extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the
same parties. Hence, the requirements under paragraph 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not
applicable to the company.

As disclosed in note 6 to the financial statements, the Company has granted loans
during the year repayable on demand to Companies. Of these following are the
details of the aggregate amount of loans or advances in the nature of loans granted
to related parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013:

- Rs. (in lakhs)
Particulars All Parties Related Parties
Aggregate amount of [oans 43,123.97 23,867.00
repayable on demand
Percentage of loans to the total loan 100% 55.35%

According to the information and explanations given to us, Loans, investments,
guarantees and security in respect of which provisions of section 185 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are applicable have been complied with by the Company.

The provisions of section 186 are not applicable to the Company and accordingly,
reporting is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any
amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76
of the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.
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(vi)

(vii) (a)

(vii) (b)

(viii)

(ix) (a)

(ix) (b)

(ix) (©

(x) (d)

(ix) &)/ (H)

The Company is not in the business of sale of any goods or provision of such services
as prescribed. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(vi) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, custom duty, excise
duty, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues have generally been regularly
deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has been a slight delay in a
few cases in respect of TDS amounts. According to the information and explanations
given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts
payahle in respect of these statutory dues were nutstanding, at the year end, for a
periad of more than six manths from the date they hecame payable,

According to the information and explanation given to us and examination ot records
of the Company, the dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’
state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, custom duty, excise duty, value
added tax, cess, and other statutory dues not deposited on account of any dispute,
are as follows:

Name of Nature of | Amount Period to which Forum where dispute
the Statute | Dues (Rs. In amount relates is pending
lakhs)
Service Tax | Service 333.22 | Financial Year Commissioner
Tax 2013-14 and (Appeals) of Central
2014-15 Tax
Service Tax | Service 117.84 | Financial Year Commissioner
Tax 2015-16 and (Appeals) of Central
2016-17 Tax

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously
unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender.

Based on the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not been
declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any
government authority.

In our opinion and according to the explanation provided to us, term loans were
applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds
raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) and 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.
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x) (a)

x) (b)

x (@

(xi) (b)

(xi) (©)

(xii) (@)/(b)/()

(xii)

(xiv) (@)

(xiv) (b)

(xv)

(xvid@)/(b)/(c)

(xvixd)

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer
/ further public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report
on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares /fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under
audit and hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

No fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xiXa)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 has been filed by secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT- 4 as
prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower comptaints
reccived by the Company during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(xi)c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 Therefare, the requirements to report on clause 2(xii)(a), 2(xiiX(b) and
3(xii)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given by the management,
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting
standards. The provisions of section 177 are not applicable to the Company and
accordingly the requirements to report under clause 3(xiii) of the Order insofar as it
relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature
of its business.

The internat audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for
the period under audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause
3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934)
are not applicable to the Company. Further, the Company is not engaged in any Non-
Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities and is not a Core Investment
Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)}a), 3(xvi)(b), and 3(xvi)c) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

As represented to us by the management, the Group does not have more than one
CIC as part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on cfause 3(xvi)(d) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx) (@

(xx) (b)

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current year and immediately
preceding financial year respectively. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(xvii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and
accordingly requirement to report on clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 44 to the financial statements,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge
of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of
the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which
causes us to believe thal any malerial uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are
required to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act
(the Act), in compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the
Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 40 to the financial statements.

There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required o
be transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of
section 135 of Companies Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 40 to the
financial statements.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Mustafa Saleem

Partner

Membership Number: 136969
UDIN: 24136969BKFGTZ2012
Place of Signature: Pune

Date: August 19, 2024
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Annexure 2 referred to in paragraph 2(g) under the heading “Report on other legal and

regulatory requirements” of our report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (I) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act')

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Panchshil
Corporate Park Private Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the inleinal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (*ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the
safequarding of its assets, the prevention and detection ot trauds and crrors, thc accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable finanrial
information. as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAl. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements.

THIS SPACE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a materiat effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

ForSRBC&COLLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Fi Regi;}t}gtion Number: 324982E/E300003
stafa Saleem

F’Q\‘
trier

Membership Number: 136969
UDIN: 24136969BKFGTZ2012
Place of Signature: Pune

Date: August 19, 2024




Panchshll Corporate Park Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

(Al unoanils sie e lndlan Rupees [k, UBIEss otherwise stated)

As at As at
St Al March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 34,745.91 40,013.38
Capital work-in-progress 3 1,529.36 2,702 21
Invwitimunt propereles 4 44,032.00 44,606.90
Investment properties under development 4 666.67 &
Inbuogilih naaeis 3 8.21 821
Financlal assets
itaty U 12,500.00
Other financial assets 7 638.77 1,958.35
Income tax assets (net} 8 . 68.75
Other non-current assets 9 464.10 538.25
82,085.08 1,02,396.05
Current assels
Inventories 10 347.06 303.74
Financlal assets
Investments 11 ] 7.183.61
Trade receivables 12 713.89 756.64
Cash and cash equivalents 13 2,031.69 1,251.45
Other bank balances 13 2,018.52 2,976.12
Loans [ 14,753.97 13,300 00
Other financial assets 7 3,183.81 2,573.62
Other current assets 9 590.78 759.87
23,639.72 29,105.05
TOTAL __Lus,/2a.80 1,31,501.10
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 14 4,88 553
Other equity 15 34,555.88 59,484 71
34,560.76 59,490.24
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 16 42,825.94 26,919.97
Other financial liabilities 17 6,763.16 2,340.57
Deferred revenue 18 1,952.99 439,23
Other non-current liabilities 21 1,819.57 3,325.44
Provisions 22 88.97 72.80
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 19 1,053 .80 1,008.17
54,504.43 34,107.18
Current liabilities
Financlal liabllities
Borrowings 3,557.02 23,054.47
Trade payables
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 20 142.89 89.52
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 20 1,009 41 99302
and small enterprises
Other financial liabilities 17 6,669.41 12,044 44
Deferred revenue 18 712,67 23471
Other current liabilities 21 3,796.93 1,471.89
Provisions 22 20,03 1563
Current tax liabilities {net) 23 751.25 -
16,652.61 37,903.68
TOTAL 1,05,724.80 1,31,501.10
Summary of material accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Ind AS financial statements

As per our repert of even date

ForSRBC&COLLP

courntants
tration rvpber' 324982E/E300003
b

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Panchshil Corporate Park Private Limited

CiN: U72900PN2005PTC142131 //2_.—"

p leem Paresh Ba\na Fatookh Khan
Paftr Director Director
Membership No.: 136969 DIN: 02033 1Wg DIN: 01323080
Place: Pune Place. Pune Place: Pune

Date: August 19, 2024 Date: August 19, 2024 Date: August 19, 2024




Panchshil Corporate Park Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars Not
feuiar e March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Income
Revenue from operations 24 36,112.46 32,674.32
Other income 25 3,320.26 3,139.79
Total income (1) 39,432.72 35,814.11
Expenses
Cost of food and beverages consumed 26 1,966.66 1,905.84
Employee benefits expense 27 2,369.58 2,133.16
Other expenses 28 7,740.40 6,723.85
Finance costs 30 5,053,45 4,807.95
Depreciation and amortisation expense 29 6,740.80 8,163.68
Total Expenses {I1) 23,870.89 23,734.48
Profit before tax (I - 11) 15,561.83 12,079.63
Tax expenses: 32
Current tax 4,456.18 3,236.48
Tax in respect of earlier years 15.03 74.49
Deferred tax charge for the year 37.48 456.18
Total tax expenses 4,508.69 3,767.15
Profit for the year 11,053.14 8,312.48
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods :
-Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans 24.52 17.07
-Income tax effect (7.14) (4.97)
Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to 17.38 12.10
profit or loss in subsequent periods (net of tax)
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 11,070.52 8,324.58
Earnings per equity share (in Rs.)
Basic and diluted {nominal value of shares Rs. 10 each) 31 20,163.54 15,042.76
Summary of material accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Panchshil Corporate Park Private Limited
CIN: U72900PN2005PTC142131 Ve

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI firm registration number: 324982E/E300003

!

Paregh Bafna
Director
DIN: 02033179

perMustafa Saleem
Partner
Membership No.: 136969

Director
DIN: 01323080

Place: Pune Place: Pune
Date: August 19, 2024 Date: August 19, 2024

" Place: Pune
Date: August 19, 2024




Panchshil Corporate Park Private Limited
Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in tndian Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Yaar ended
Particulars

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A. Cash flows generated fram/(used in) operating activities
Profit before tax 15,561.83 12,079.63
Adfrstmints for
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 6,740.80 8,163.68
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment 17.94 o
Liahilities written back {126.19) (46.75]
Profit on sale of current investment {197.78) 1171.76)
Fair value gain on current investment - {81.83)
Provision for doubtful receivables and advances 98.74 53.32
Interest expenses 4,922.46 4,699.17
Interest income {2.,965.47) {2,675.58)
Operating profit before working capital changes 14,0533 22,019.00
Movements In working capital ;
|iitrease ) Uecrease In other non current assets (352.31) 5182
{increasel/ Decrease in inventaries {12.22) 23047
Increase n trade receivables (55.99) (330.77}
Increase in othor non curront financial aasects {1/6.31) (e
LI dsk)) UeLIdsy 11 UL LULTEHL HILHCK d5581E5 {11.65) 1334
[nicrease in other current assets 169 N {1 ary)
Increaze/ {Uecivase) (n liude poysbles 14595 {292.53)
Increase in other non-current financial liabilities 4,422.59 2,244 38
Decrease in other current financial liabilities (5,161.62) (2,931.66)
Increase in other current liabilities 81917 3804
Increase in deferred revenue 1,991.72 58717
liser 2@ in provisions 45 09 41.62
Cash generated from operations 25,894.74 20,589.97
Direct taxes pald (net of refunds) {3,651.21) 2,084 94]
Net cash flow generated from operating activities (A) 22,243.53 18,505.03
8. Cash flows generated from/{used in) investing actlvities
Payments towards purchase of property, capital work in progress and investment (230 00) (3,627.44)
properties
Proceads from sale of property, plant and equipment 54.26 .
Purchases of mutual funds (40,780.00) {41,045,00)
Proczed from sale of mutual funds 48,161.39 35,840 65
Loan given as intercorporate deposit (43,123.97) {14,500,00)
Praceeds from recovery of loan, given as intercorporate deposit 54,170.00 14,500.00
Irvestment in fixed deposits (10,950 01} (7,729 749}
PMraceeds from redemption of fixed deposits 11,851.32 7,632 86
Interest received 3,319.11 1,205.61
Met cash flow generated from/ (used in} investing activities (B) 23,072.10 {7.723.14)
C. Cash flows generated from/(used in) financing activities
Paymant in connection with buyback of equity share capital {including tax) (17,787 19)
Proceeds from borrowings 20,000.00
fiepaymuent of borrowings {23,591 .48) (6,815.09)
Dividend paid (refer Note 15.1) {18,212 81) -
Interest paid (4,943.91) (4.42047)]
Net cash flow used in financing activities (C) [44,535.39) [11,235,56)
Net Increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) 780.24 (853.67)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,251.45% 1,705.12
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2,031.69 1,251.45
(Cash and cash equivalents include
Balances with banks
~ On current accounts 1,198 27 84543
— Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 82000 400 00
Cash on hand 1342 6.02

2,031,69 1,251.45

3 y of material acc g policies Note 2
Note:

a The figures in brackets represent outflows
b. The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

c. In addition to the above cash flow in financing activity, change in liabilities arising from financing activities also includes amortisation of loan processing fees of INR 130 07

lakhs

As per our report of even date
FOorSRBC&COLP

Chartered grcountants
ratlon numw 324982E/E300003

Qﬁ},\; .
&,'/ m g
leem o
:::n

Membership No.: 136969
w

Place: Pune =
Date: August 19, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board cf Directors of /
Panchshil Corporate Park Private Limited /

CIN: U72300PN2005PTC142131

Paresh Baf
Director
DIN: 020331

Place: Pune
Date: August 19, 2024

Fafookh Khan
irector
DIN: 01323080

Place: Pune
Date August 19, 2024



Panchshil Corporate Park Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital

Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2024 For the year ended March 31, 2023
No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
Opening balance 55,259 5.53 55,259 5.53
Less: Buy back of shares during the year [refer note 15(e)] (6,464) {0.65) - o
Closing balance 48,795 4.88 55,259 5.53
B. Other equity
For the year ended March 31, 2024
— ital "
particulars Securities Premium | Retained earnings Capital redemption Total
reserve
Opening balance 34,705.79 24,778.45 0.47 59,484.71
Profit for the year - 11,053.14 - 11,053.14
Other comprehensive income {consisting of remeasurement gain of - 17.38 - 17.38
defined benefit plans, net of tax)
Other comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2024 - 11,070.52 - 11,070.52
Add/(Less): Transfer to Capital Redemption Reserve (0.65) - 0.65 -
Less: Utilised towards buy back of shares [refer note 15(e)] {16,159.35) - (16,159.35)
Less: Utilised for Dividend (18,212.81) - (18,212.81)
Less: Tax on Buy back of shares [refer note 15(e)) - (1,627.19) (1,627.19)
Closing balance 18,545.79 16,008.97 1.12 34,555.88
For the year ended March 31, 2023
Particul Capital red ti
i Securities Premium | Retained earnings apitalredemption Total
reserve
Opening balance 34,705.79 16,453.87 0.47 51,160.13
Profit for the year 8,312.48 - 8,312.48
Other comprehensive income (consisting of remeasurement of - 12,10 - 12.10
defined benefit obligations, net of tax)
Total comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2023 - 8,324.58 - 8,324.58
Closing balance 34,705.79 24,778.45 0.47 59,484.71

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI firm registration number: 324982E/E300003

pedMubtafa Saleem
Partner
Membership No.: 136969

Place: Pune
Date: August 19, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Panchshil Corporate Park Private Limited

CIN: U72900PN2005PTC142131

Paresh Bafn
Director
DiN: 0203317

Place: Pune
Date: August 19, 2024

Farookh Khan
Director
DIN: 01323080

Place: Pune
Date: August 19, 2024
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Panchshil Corporate Park Private Limited
Notes to the Ind AS financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated}

Note 4 - Investment properties As at March 31, 2024

Land Building Total
Gross carrying value
Opening balance as at April 01, 2023 12,766.62 46,175.08 58,941.70
Additions 253.08 993.21 1,246.29
Disposals - - =
Closing balance as at March 31, 2024 13,019.70 47,168.29 60,187.99
Accumulated Depreciation
Opening balance as at April 01, 2023 - 14,334.80 14,334.80
Charge for the year 1,821.19 1,821.19
Disposals - - -
Closing balance as at March 31, 2024 - 16,155.99 16,155.99
Net Book Value as at March 31, 2024 13,019.70 31,012.30 44,032.00

Investment properties As at March 31,2023

Land Building Total
Gross carrying value
Opening balance as at April 01, 2022 12,766.62 45,345.78 58,112.40
Additions - 829.30 829.30
Disposals - = -
Closing balance as at March 31, 2023 12,766.62 46,175.08 58,941.70
Accumulated Depreciation
Opening balance as at April 01, 2022 - 12,572.59 12,572.59
Charge for the year - 1,762,21 1,762.21
Disposals - - -
Closing balance as at March 31, 2023 = 14,334.80 14,334.80
Net Book Value as at March 31, 2023 12,766.62 31,840.28 44,606.90

Notes
(i) The Company’s investment properties consist of commercial leasing properties in India. The title deeds of these investment properties are held in the name of
the Company.

Note 4 - Investment properties under development March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening balance = -

Additions 666.67 -
Disposals / Capitalisation - 3
Closing balance * 666.67

*Investment property under development consist of directly attributable expenditure {brokerage charges) pertaining to leases yet to be commenced as at March 31, 2024

Investment properties under I
Projects in progress

t ageing

Amount in CWIP for a year of
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
As at March 31, 2024 666.67 - - -
As at March 31, 2023 -




Panchshil Corporate Park Private Limited

Notes to the Ind AS financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Information regarding income and expenditure of Investment properties

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rental income derived from Investment properties 22,264.26 20,066.86
Dm.act nperahng‘e.xpenseq (.mr.ludmg repairs an'ri 1,410.00 1,282.66
maintenance) arising from investimenl properties
Profit a.ns.lng fronj myestmem properties before 20,854.26 17,784.20
depreciation and indirect expenses
Less : Depreciation 1,821.19 1,762.21
fit arisi . .
f’ro. it arising from investment properties before 19,033.07 16,021.99
indirect expenses
Reconciliation of fair value of the Investment properties are as under
Fal Value As al Maich 31, 2024
Land Building Total
Opening Balance as at April 01, 2023 73,856.79 81,340.00 1,55,196.79
Fair value movement for the year 1,690.13 917.00 2,607.13
Purchases 253.08 - 253.08
Closing Balance as at March 31, 2024 75,800.00 82,257.00 1,58.,057.00
Fair Value As at March 31,2023
Land Building Total
Opening Balance as at April 01, 2022 71,802.00 80,091.00 1,51,893.00
Fair value movement for the year 2,054.79 1,249.00 3,303.79
Purchases - - -
Closing Balance as at March 31, 2023 73,856.79 81,340.00 1,55,196.79
Description of valuation techni used and key inputs to invest t properties :
Particulars Valuation techniques Significant unobservable Range {weighted average)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Land Market Method Built Up area (sft.) 7,68,501 7,68,501
(Replacement cost)  Rate adopted per sft. Rs. 8,800/- Rs, 8,600/-
Land in Mundwa Market Method Area of Land (sgmts) 17,827.55 17,259.55
(Replacement cost)  Rate adopted per Sgmtrs Rs. 46,000/- Rs. 45,000/-
Building Market Method Built Up area (sft.) 23,13,492 23,13,492
{Replacement cost)  Rate adopted per sft. Rs. 3,200-5,000/- Rs. 3,100-4,500/-

Description of valuation Method

These valuations are based on valuations performed by Thite Valuers & Engineers Pvt. Ltd., an accredited independent and Government certified valuer, which is
in compliance with rule 2 of the Companies (Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017. The valuation was conducted through a market rate approach. Under
this approach the market value has been obtained by considering the sale consideration of the similar properties. Under this method average rate has been
obtained from various sale instances for similar properties after adjusting various positive and negative factors associated with the property under valuation. For
constructed properties depreciation market rate is taken for valuation.




Panchshil Corporate Park Private Limited

Notes to the Ind AS financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts are In Indlan Rupees lakhs, unless otherwlse stated)

Note 5 - Intangible assets as at March 31, 2024

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

2024 2023
Computer software

Gross carrying value

Opening Balance 173.94 173.94
Additions = _
Disposals - -
Closing Balance 173.94 173.94
Accumulated Amortisation

Opening Balance 165.73 146.26
Charge during the year - 19.47
Disposals - -
Closing Balance 165.73 165.73
Net Book Value 8.21 8.21




Panchshil Corporate Park Private Limited
Notes to the Ind AS financlal statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024
{an are in indian Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 6 - Loans

Non-Current Current
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Unsecured, considered good - at amortised cost

Inter-corporate deposit repayable on demand . 14,753.97 13,300.00
Inter-corporate deposit 12,500.00 J
Total Loans . 12,500.00 14,753.97 13,300.00
Details of the loans As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Amount of loan or advance Percentage to thetotal Amount of loan or Percentage to the total
Type of Borrower In the nature of loan Loans and Advances in  advance inthenatureof Loans and Advances in
outstanding the nature of loans loan outstanding the nature of loans
Promoter =
Directors
KMPs X
Kelated Partles * 3,957.00 27.09% 13,300.00 51385%
Others 10,756.97 7291% 12,500.00 48.45%
* Please refer note 24 for details.
Name of the Related parties Rate of interest Due date Secured/ Unsecured March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A2Z Online Services Private Ltd {Refer note a below) 825% On demand Unsecured . 750.00
Panchshil Realty & Developers Private Limited {(Refer note a below) 12.00% On demand Unsecured - 12,500.00
Shahenshah Properties Private Limited (Refer note a below) 9.00% On demand Unsecured . 50.00
Wellcraft Reaity Pvt Ltd {refer note b below} 11.00% On demand Unsecured 847.00 .
Balewadi Techpark Private Limited {refer note b below) 1050% On demand Unsecured 3,150.00
3,997.00 13,300.00

a. Loans have been utilised by these parties for general corporate purposes

b. Refer Note 52 for details regarding utilisation of loans to these parties during the year

c There are no loans due by directors or other officers of the company or any of them either severally or jointly with any other person or debts due by firms or private companies respectively in which any director
is a partner or a director or a member, other than as disclosed above

Note 7 - Other financlal assets {at amortised cost)

Non-Current Current
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31,2023 As at March 31, 2023

Unsecured, considered good

Deposits with banks with remaining maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 13283
months (Refer note 13A}
Deposits with banks with remaining maturity of more than 12 months (Refer note 13A) 50.00 126.54
50.00 126.54 132.83 E

Security Deposit 588.77 412.46 3960 27.95
Interest accrued on fixed deposit - - 11157 114.31
Interest accrued on inter-corporate deposits - 1,419 35 2,899.81 2,43136

588.77 1,831.81 3,050.98 2,573.62
Total other financial assets 638.77 1,958.35 3,183.81 2,573.62

Note 8 - Income tax assets (net)

Non-Current
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Advance income-tax (net of provision for taxation, amounting to ® Nil {March 31, 2023: X
4,558 95 lakhs) - 6875

Total Income tax asset{net) - 68.75




Panchshll Corporate Park Private Limited
Notes to the Ind AS financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All are in Indlan Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 9 - Other assets

Non-Current Current
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Unbilled revenue 207.00 224.77 268.58

Capltal Advances

Unsecured, considered good 4379 470.19

Considered doubtful - -
4379 47019

Advance to employees (Unsecured, considered good) . 15.20 053
Advances
Unsecured, considered good 150.02 32564
Considered doubtful 14.94 i
164.96 325.64
L ass Allnwanre far doohtol advances 1194
* = 150.02 325.64
Other advances
Prepald avpanses 11337 69 06 200 79 165 12
113.37 68.06 200./9 16b.12
Total Other assets 464.16 538.25 590.78 759.87
Note 10 - (valued at lower of cost and NRV)
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Food, beverages and other supplies 347,06 303.74
Total Inventories 347.08 303.73
Note 11 - Current [\
E At March 41, 2024 ASat March 41, Judd
Investment in mutual funds, measured at falr value through profit or loss {Unquoted, fully paid)
HSBC Overnight Fund - Direct Growth - 7,183.61
Nil units{Previous year- 6,12,415.336 units)
Total Current investments - 7,183.61
Aggregated book value of unquoted Investments - 7,183.61

Aggregated Market value of unquoted investments - 7,183.61
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Note 12 - Trade raceivablas

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered good
Credit impaired

Less: Impairment allowance
Total Trade receivables

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 0-30 days

14818 37.26
565.71 71938
88.41 30.68
802.30 787.32
8841 30.68
713.89 756.64

For terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, and for disclosure on amounts due from private companies where director of the Company is director/ member, refer note 34

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with.any other person
For explanations on the Company's credit risk process, refer note 37
The net carrying value of trade receivables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value

M in the all @ far expected credit losses of trade rac

For the year ended March

For the year ended

31,2024 March 31, 2023
Balance as at beginning of the year 30.68 42.88
Provision created during the year 7551 10.72
Reversal during the year {17.78) (22.92)
Balance as at end of the year 8841 30.68
Trade receivable ageing as at March 31, 2024
[+] I #
particulars for periods from due date of pay Total
Not due Less than 6 h 6 months - 1 year 1 year - 2 year 2 year- 3 year More than 3 years
{i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 14 .06 55945 69.73 4296 6.62 21.07 713.89
i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in credit risk - . - - - -
{iii} Undisputed Trade Receivables —credit impaired . 0.19 966 38.15 1879 2162 8841
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good Al
{v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in credit risk E - - - - .
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - o 2 B x
14.06 559.64 79.39 81.11 25.42 42.69 802.30
Trade receivable ageing as at March 31, 2023
Particulars o ding for following periods from due date of payment # Total
Not due Less than 6 months 6 months - 1 year 1 year- 2 year 2 year - 3 year Maore than 3 years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 538.24 12119 62.93 23.16 003 1108 756.64
{ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in credit risk . - . . . -
Undisputed Trade Receivables —credit impaired - - - 18.93 027 1148 3068
{iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good h - . : _ _
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in credit risk - I -
{vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired E - S -
538.24 121.19 62.93 42.09 787.32

# Disclosure has been prepared on the basis of transaction date where due date has not been specified
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(all

are in Indian Rupees lakhs, unless otherwlse stated)

Note 13 - Cash and bank balances

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:

—On current accounts 1,198.27 84543
- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 820.00 400.00
Cash nn hand 13 42 [
1,031.60 1,JE1.18
Nule 13A - Othes bank balanves
Non-Current Current

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Margin money
Deposits with remaining maturity for more than 12 months
Deposits with remaining maturity for less than 12 months

Deposits with original maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 months

Amaount dii

d undar othar fl | assats (Nafar MNota 7)

Total cash and bank balances.

50.00 12654 .
132,83

2,018.52 2,976.12

50.00 126.54 2,151.35 2,976.12
(£0.00) (126.69) (132.83)

- = 201852 2,976.12

Note: Balances held as margin money or security against borrowings and guarantees of Rs. 2,201 35 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 3,102.66 lakhs)

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Balances with banks:

—On current accounts 1,198.27 845.43
— Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 820.00 400.00
Cash on hand 13.42 6.02
2,031.69 1,251.45
Breakup of financial assets carried at amortised cost
Non-Current Current

Loans

Trade and other recevables

Cash and cash equivalents

Other bank balances

Other financial assets

Total financial Ifabilities carried at amortised cost

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

. . 14,753.97 13,300.00
. 713.89 75664

2,031.69 1,251.45

2,018.52 2,976 12

63877 1,958.35 3,183.81 2,573 62
638.77 1,958.35 22,701.88 20,857.83
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Note 14. Equity share capital

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Authorised shares

1,000,000 (March 31, 2023: 1,000,000) equity shares of Rs .10 each 100.00 100.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital
48,795 (March 31, 2023: 55,259) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 4.88 553
4.88 553
(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
Equlty shares Asat March 31,2024 Asat March 31, 2023 -
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
At the beginning of the year 55,259 553 55,259 553
lusue of shares diring the year - B -
Buy back of shares during the year (6,464} {0.65)
Qutstanding at the end of the year AB, 795 4.88 55,259 5.53

{b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has anly one class of equity shares having par value of ® 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company has declared interim dividend
during the current year (refer Note 15.1). Company has not declared any dividend during the previous year.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution

will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(c) Detalls of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Name of the shareholder

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

% holding In the class No. of shares % holding in the class No. of shares
Byully shares uf 10 each fully pald
Premsagar Infra Realty Private Limited 50,01% 24,398 50,01% 27,630
Genesis Parks LLP 49.99% 24,397 49.99% 27,629
Total 100.00% 48,795 100.00% 55,259.00

The shareholding information has been extracted from the records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and is based on legal ownerships of shares as at the balance

sheet date.

(d) Shareholding of promoters

As at March 31, 2024

Promoter name MNo. of shares at the beginning Change during the year No. of shares at the end of the % of total shares % Change during the
of the year year year
Premsagar Infra Realty Private Limited 27,630 {3,232) 24,398 S0.01%
Genesis Parks LLP 27,629 {3,232) 24,397 49.99%
Total 55,259 (6.464) 48,795 100,00%
As at March 31, 2023 = —
Promoter name No. of shares at the beginning Change during the year No. of shares at the end of the % of total shares % Change during the
of the year year year
Premsagar Infra Realty Private Limited 27,630 27,630 50.01%
Genesis Parks LLP 27,629 27,629 49 .99%|
Total 55,259 -| 55,259 100.00%
(e} Equity shares bought back by the Company during the period of five years i p ding the ing date: - - -
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
No. of shares No. of shares No. of shares No. of shares No. of shares
Equity shares bought back by the Company * 6,464 4,724

* The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on February 28, 2024 and the shareholders by way of Special Resolution on February 29, 2024, approved the buy back of 6,464 fully paid equity shares of the face value
of 10/- each of the Company from its shareholder Including promoters and promoter group of the Company as on the record date, on a proportionate basis at a price of Rs. 250,000/ per share for an aggregate amount not
exceeding Rs, 161,60,00,000/-. The Company completed the Buy Back Process on March 06, 2024 and has complied with all the requisite formalities with Registrar of Companies and other regulatory authorities. The Company has
bought back shares of nominal value aggregating to Rs. 64,640 by debiting Equity share capital of the Company and utilised balance in securities premium account to the extent of Rs. 161,59,35,360 for the balance amount

- In accordance with section 69 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has created ‘Capital Redemption Reserve’ of 64,640/- equal to the nominal value of the shares bought back as an appropriation from Securities Premium
Account

Further, the Company has also paid tax of Rs. 16,27,18,959 which has been debited Lo Retained earnings,

Further, there were no equity shares issued as bonus, shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of 5 years immediately preceding the reporting date
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Note 15 - Other equity

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

A. Securities premium
Balance as at the beginning of the year
Less: Transferred to capital redemption reserve
Less: Utilised for Buy back of shares

Closing balance

¥ wotainad karninge
Balance as at the beginning of the year
Add: profit for the year
Add: Other Comprehensive Income
Less: Utilised for Dividend (refer Note 15.1 below)
Less: Tax on Buy Back of shares

Closing balance

C. Capital redemption Reserve
Balance as at the beginning of the year
Add: Transferred from Securities premium

Closing balance

Total other equity

34,705.79 34,705.79
(0.65) .
(16,159.35) -
18,545.79 34,705.79
24,778.45 16,453.87
11,053.14 8,312.48
17.38 12.10
(18,212.81) -
(1,627.19) -
16,008.97 24,778.45
0.47 0.47

0.65 -

1.12 0.47
34,555.88 59,484.71

Nature and purpose of reserves:
Securities premium reserves

The Company had issued equity shares at premium in prior years, and as a result securities premium was created. The reserve can be utilised oniy for limited
purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Retained Earnings

Retained earnings are the profits/(loss) that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers from other reserves, dividends or other distributions paid to
shareholders. Retained earnings include re-measurement loss / (gain) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit

and Loss.

Capital redemption reserve

The Company bought back its shares in current year and in an earlier financial year, and in order to comply with the requirements of the Companies Act,

2013, the Company created Capital redemption reserve (Refer note 14)

Note 15.1

Dividend represents interim dividend paid for the year ended March 31, 2024 of Rs. 37,325.16 per share
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Note 16 - Borrowings

Non-Current Current
As at March 31,2024  As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31,2024 As at March 31, 2023
Term loans (Secured}
Indian Rupee loan 1 . 20,33890
Indian Rupee loan 2 23,86278 26,919.97 2,97043 2,715 57
Indian Rupee loan 3 18,963.16 586.59 -
Net amount 42,825.94 26,919.97 3,557.02 23,054.47

The Maturity analysis of borrowings is disclosed in note No 37

Note

Indian Rupee loan 1

Term loan from State Bank of India carries bank carries interest linked with 6 Month MCLR. The loan is repayable in 94 unequal monthly installments along with
interest, from the date of disbursement of Joan in June 2020 {maturity in March 2028). The loan Is secured by {i) first exclusive charge on current & future rent
receivables from Tower A and B of Business Bay Pune excluding HSDIPL lease rentals. (i) first and exclusive mortagage on Tower A & B and common area to gether
with proportionate undivided interest in the Project land. The entire loan was repaid in May 2023 and the Company has received the no dues certificate

Indian Rupee loan 2

Term loans from Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited carries bank carries interest linked with 6 Month T Bill. The loan is repayable in 120 unequal
monthly installments along with interest, from August 2021 (maturity in July 2031). The loan is secured by secured by (i} First and Exclusive EQM of office space and
proportionate land of tower B of Business Bay, Pune. {ii) First and Exclusive charge over the lease rental from the tenant - HSDIPL (Present & Future) of commercial
tower B at Business Bay, Pune. The Company has not defaulted in repayment of any loans or related interest,

Indlan Rupee loan 3

Term loans from Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited bank carries interest linked with 1 Month T Bill. The loan is repayable in 120 unequal monthly
installments alang with Interest, fram July 2023 {maturity (n June 2033) The [nan s secured by secured by (i) Hirst and kxclusive ELIM of office space and
proportionate fand ot tewar A ot Bncinoce ¥ay, Hune (it} biret and wxcluero charge ovor the teace rental trem the tanant  LII'L (Present K | uture) sf semmorgial
tower A at Business Bay, Pune. The Company has not defaulted in repayment of any foans or related interest,

Tha fampany hae hann sanctionad muardratt Bmit af Be tsnnty cearar in aggregata, which are nndrawm e 2t March 71, 3034 and March 71, 3033, from Henghnng
and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited on the basis of security of current assets of the Company. However, no quarterly returns/ statements are not required to
be filed with such Banks by the Company.

FHULE dhe HU EESLHLLUNG Ut USSP U1 SULT UHUN dWH [Tt

Loan Covenant
Bank loans contain certain debt covenants relating to limitation on indebted dividend declaration; selling/assigning/mortgaging/dispose any Fixed Assets charged

to bank, interest rates on monies borrowed from Directors/Promotors/Relatives etc, maintenance of minimum DSCR rate and LTV cap.
The Company has satisfied all the debt covenants prescribed in the terms of bank loan and has not defaulted on any ioans payable

Note 17 - Other financial liabllities

Non-Current Current
As at As at As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Security deposits 6,763.16 2,34057 6,268.91 11,418.81
Employee related liabilities ] 51.20 4661
Retention money - 174.01 190.32
Capital creditors - . 67.40 259.36
Inberest acerued bt not due . - 107.89 129.34

Total financial liabilities 6,763.16 2,340.57 6,669.41 12,044.44
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(Al arein Indian Rupees lakhs; unless otherwise stated)
Note 18 - Deferred revenue
Non-Current Current
Asat As at Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Deferred lease income 1,952.99 439,23 71267 23471
Total deferred revenue 1,952.99 439.23 712,67 234.71
Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening 67394 8677
Deferred during the year 2,424.33 701.88
Released to the statement of profit and loss 43261 11471
As at year end 2,665.66 673.94
Note 19. Deferred tax liabilities {net)
As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Deferred tax liabilities / (assets) - net
Deferred tax liabilities
Accelerated depreciation for tax purpose 1,055.40 93435
On account of fair valuation/ amortised cost adjustment 69.36 12266
of financial instruments (investments, security deposits,
etc)
Other 144 -
1,126.20 1,057.01
beferred tax assets
Provision for bad/doubtul debts and advances (25.74) (8.93)
Provision for gratuity (19.91) (15.67)
Frayision for leave encathment (11.84) (10.08)
Provision for bonus (14.91) {13.16)
{72.40) (47.84)
Deferred tax (liabilities) / assets - net {refer Note 32} 1,053.80 1,009.17
Note 20 - Trade payables
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 142.89 89,52
enterprises (refer Note 39)
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 1,008.41 993.02
enterprises and small enterprises
Total trade payables 1,152.30 1,082.54
Trade payable to related parties {refer note 34} 48.80 5180
Trade payable to others 1,103.50 1,030.74
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 0-60 days
Trade payable ageing as at March 31, 2024
Outstanding for following periods from
due date of payment #
Particulars . = i ot pay o m =
Unbilled Not due ey N a ore thary Total
| year _ years years 3 years
{iIMSME 0.20 12942 10.03 008 3.16 142.89
(ii)Others 37875 89,61 466.56 1543 003 59.03 1,009.41
(i) Disputed dues — MSME - - . . .
liv} Disputed dues - Others - - - - . -
378.75 89.81 595.98 25.46 0.11 62.19 1,152.30
Trade payable ageing as at March 31, 2023
Outstanding for following periods from
f
Particulars due date of payment # - |
Unbilled Not due Lessthan 1 1-2 2-3 More than Total
- year years years 3years |
(i)MSME - 057 8746 149 89.52
(ii)Others 36213 1524 550.12 263 740 55.50 993.02
(iif) Disputed dues - MSME - - . =
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - -
362,13 15.81 637.58 2.63 7.40 56.99 1,082 54

#Disclosure has been prepared on the basis of transaction date where due date has not been specified
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Note 21 - Other Liabilities

Contract Liabilities

Advance from customers *

Jucomie reccived o advanee YY
Nthars

1U5 and other statutory dues payable
Value added tax pavable

Goods and services tax payable
Other liabilities

Employee related liabilities

EPCG dulwrted payable (refer nule 13)
Total Other Liabilities

Non-Current Current
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
234.80 331.96
3.1/ 3.60
1,887.7G 129.45
36 74 2967
- 433.55 160.96
- 45.12 36.54
21358 1A A9
1,010.57 3,325 L, 3940 163.02
1,819.57 3,325.44 3,796.93 1,471.89

* Advance from customers is recognized when payment is received before the related performance obligation is satisfied. This includes advances received
from the customer towards rooms/food & beverage/other services. Revenue is recognized once the performance obligation is met i.e. on room stay / sale
of food and beverage / provision of other hospitality services. Performance obligations are satisfied within a period of 12 months.

Revenue recognised during the year includes INR 331.96 lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 294.50 lakhs) from amounts included in contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year. No revenue is recognised during the year (March 31, 2023: Nil) from performance obligations satisfied (or partially satisfied) in

previous years

** Includes membership fee received in advance from customers / members as part of membership program offered from time to time, Performance
obligations are satisfied within a period of 12 months. Revenue recognised during the year includes INR 3.60 lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 4.02 lakhs) from
amounts included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the year. No revenue is recognised during the year (March 31, 2023: Nil) from performance

obligations satisfied (or partially satisfied) in previous years.

Break up of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost

Non-Current Current
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Borrowing 42,825.94 26,919.97 3,557.02 23,054.47
Other financial liabilities 6,763.16 2,340.57 6,669.41 12,044.44
Trade payables 1,152.30 1,082.54
Total financial liabilities carried at amortised cost 49,589.10 29,260.54 11,378.73 36,181.45
Note 22 - Provisions
Non-Current Current
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for ieave encashment 22.42 19.09 18.23 15.52
Provision for gratuity (refer Note 42) 66.55 53.71 1.80 0.11
Total provisions 88.97 72.80 20.03 15.63
Note 23 - Current tax liability (net)
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Provision for taxation (net of advance income-tax,
amounting to X 4,476.90 lakhs (March 31, 2023: X Nil)

751.25

Total Income tax asset(net)

751.25
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Note 24 - Revenue from operations

A. Revenue from rental income

B. Revenue from contract with customers
I. Services transferred over time
From commercial leasing
Other activities incidental to commercial leasing (net)

From hotel operations
Room income

Other hotel services including banquet income and membership fees

H.Goods transferred at a point in time
From hotel operations
Sale of food and beverages

Taral reve e oy vnbie Lwdlh cusloie s
Total revenua from oparatlone
Type of goods or service

Revenue from commerdial leasing
Revenue from hotel operations

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
22,264.26 20,066.86
37.99 60.07
5,969.96 4,960.61
1,069.40 964.12
7,077.35 5,984.80
6,770.85 6,622.66
6,770.85 6,622.66
13,8u8.20 12,L07.40
3G,112.40 32,674.82

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
22,302.25 20,126.93
13,810 21 12,547 39
36,112.46 32,674.32

The revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss is in accordance with the contracted price and there are no reconciliation items

Disaggregated Revenue Information

Revenue recognised over a period of time
Revenue recognised at a point of time

Contract balances

Balances at the beginning of the year

Trade Receivables

Contract assets

Contract liability - Advances from customers
Balances at the end of the year

Trade Receivables

Contract assets

Contract liability - Advances from customers

Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligation
Expected to be recognised as revenue over the next one year

Expected to be recognised as revenue beyond the next one year

Note 25 - Other income

Interest income on

- Bank deposits measured at amortised cost

- on inter corporate deposit measured at amortised cost
- on security deposit measured at amortised cost

- on income tax refund

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
7,077.35 5,984.80
6,770.85 6,622.66
13,848.20 12,607.46

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

756.64 413.89
268.58 339.27
335.56 298.52
713.89 756.64
431.77 268.58
237.97 335.56
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
237.97 335.56
237.97 335.56

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
227.35 138.08
2,705.51 2,521.98
3261 15.52
- 149.98
2,965.47 2,825.56
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Other non-operating income:

Realised gain on investments classified as FVTPL

Profit of sale of property, plant and equipment

Excess provision / liabilities written back

Unrealised gain on investments classified as FVTPL

Net gain on foreign exchange fluctuations
Miscellaneous income

Income from sale of construction materials and fit outs
Scrap Sale

Total other income

197.78 171.76
17.94 -
126.19 46.75

= 81.83

3.98

. 0.14

145 1.83
1143 7.94
354.79 314.23
3,320.26 3,139.79
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Note 26 - Cost of food and beverages consumed

fFor the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cost of food and beverages consumed
Inventory at the beginning of the year 303.74 278.40
Add: Purchases 2,009.98 1,931.18
2,313.72 2,209.58
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 347.06 303.74
Cost of food and beverages consumed 1,966.66 1,905.84
Total cost of sales 1,966.66 1,905.84
Note 27 - Employee benefit expenses
Fer tha yoar anded For tha yoar ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Salaries, wages and bonus 1,850.90 1,719.94
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 42) 102.31 89.54
Gratuity expenses (refer note 42) 34.96 32.11
Staff welfare expenses 381.41 291.57
2,369.58 2,133.16
Note 28 - Other expenses
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Power, fuel and light 1,181.40 1,014.67
Rates and taxes 1,141.48 967.63
Insurance charges 115.44 120.27
Housekeeping expenses 309.15 293.68
Repairs and maintenance
Plant and machinery 380.32 336.20
Buildings 588.36 543.85
Vehicle 6.48 3.49
Advertising and sales promotion 710.93 593.02
Travelling and conveyance 19.00 17.85
Printing and stationery 20.98 20.40
Legal and professional fees 322,58 249.22
Ltinen, laundry and cleaning 306.46 263.41
Internet, telephone and other operating supplies 651.67 830.23
Auditors' remuneration (refer note 28.01 below) 16.49 15.55
Other incidental activity expenses (net) 356,08 33043
Asset management charges 432.23 400.18
Royalty fees 346.21 177.29
Management fees 216.32 181.59
Security expenses 180.89 139.88
Provision for doubtful debts 75.51 10.72
Exchange loss {net) 14,28 16.67
Debit balance written off 23.23 .
CSR Expenses (refer note 40) 106.00 44,88
Miscellaneous expenses 218.91 152.64
Total other expense 7,740.40 6,723.85
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28.01 Auditors' Remuneration

As auditor:
- Audit fee
- Reimbursement of expenses

Note 29 - Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property, piant and equipment (refer note 3)
Depreciation of investment properties (refer note 4)
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 5}

Less: export incentive (refer note 43)

Total depreciation and amortisation expenses

Note 30 - Finance costs

Interest expenses

- on bank facilities

- financial liahilitier carried at amorticad coct
- on income tax

- on others

Other borrowing costs
Bank charges

Total finance cost

Note 31. Earnings per share (EPS)

The following reflects the profit and share data used in the basic EPS computations:

Earnings per share (EPS)

Numerator for basic and diluted EPS
Net profit after tax

Denominator for basic and diluted EPS

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculation of basic and diluted EPS (in numbers)

Basic and diluted earnings per share of face value of X 10 each (in Rs.)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
16.43 15.50
0.06 0.05
16.49 15.55
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
6,054.05 7,145.01
1,821.19 1,762.21
- 19.47
7,875.24 8,926.69
(1,134.44) (763.01)
6,740.80 8,163.68
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
4,508.72 4,607.40
300,85 0172
20.72 -
0.17 0.05
4,922.46 4,699.17
4,922.46 4,699.17
130.99 108.78
130.99 108.78
5,053.45 4,807.95
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
11,053.14 8,312.48
54,817.47 55,259.00
20,163.54 15,042.76
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Note 32. Income tax

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

Statement of profit and loss section

income Tax
Current income tax:

are:

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Current income tax charge 4,456,18 3,236.48
Adjustment for current tax of previous years 15,03 74.49
Total current tax expense 4,471.21 3,310.97
Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 37.48 456.18
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 37.48 456,18
0OCI Section
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year 7.14 4.97
7.14  a97
Reconciliation of tax exp and the acc ing profit multiplied by India's d tic tax rate for the year ended
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Income Tax . B
Accounting profit before tax 15,561.83 12,079.63
Computed tax expense at India's statutory income tax rate @ 29.12% (March 31, 2023: 29,12%) 4,531.61 3,517.59
Adjustments for:
-Tax for earlier years 15.03 74.49
Amount not deductible
-CSR Expenses (refer note 40) 15.98 13.07
-Others {53.93) 162.01
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 4,508.69 3,767.16
Details of deferred tax liablliti
For the year ended For the year ended
As at 31-Mar-2024 | Asat 31-Mar-2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
D Deferred tax assets/ | Deferred tax assets/ | Statement of profit et Statement of profit and Sthey
(liability) (liability) and loss comprehensive foss comprehensive
(income)/ loss {income)/ loss
Accelerated depreciation for tax purpose {1,055.40) (934.35) 121.05 368.43 -
On z_iccou_nt f;famortlsed cost/ fair valuation adjustment (69.36) (122.66) (53.30) (84.34)
on financial instruments
Provision for bad/doubtul debts and advances 25.74 8.93 {16.81) 3.56 -
Provision for gratuity 19.91 15.67| {11,39) 7.14 (8.81) 4.97
Provision for leave encashment 11.84 10.08 (1.76) - (3.31) .
Provision for bonus 14,91 13.16 (1.75) 6.34 -
Other {1.44) 4 1.44 - 174.31 .
Net deferred tax expense/(income) | 37.48 7.14 456.18 4,97]
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) l1.053.80|[ (1,009.17) l
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Deferred tax liability (1,126.20) {1,057.01)
Deferred tax assets 72.40 47.84
Deferred tax liability (net) {1,053.80) {1,009.17)
Reconciliation of deferred tax (liabilities)/assets, net As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Deferred tax liability as at April 1 (1,009.17) {548.02)
Deferred tax expense recognised in profit or loss (37.48) (456.18)
Deferred tax expense recognised in other comprehensive income (7.14) {4.97}
Closing balance {1,053.80) (1,009.17)
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Note 33.

Note 33A. Leases

Operating lease commitments: where the Company is the lessor

Tha Company hac ontorod into oparating luosus vn ity investment property portfollo conalsting of commerclal space along with Interior fit-
outs such as turniture and tixture, air conditioners, etc. These leases have terms of between one and seven years. Some of the leases
inrlurle a clanse tnenahle upward vevision of e rental charge on an annual bacis according to provailing markot condItions. Thora are no
restrictions imposed by the lease agreement. Rental income recognised by the Company during the year is Rs. 22,264.26 lakhs (March 31,
2023 : Rs. 20,066.68 lakhs). Future minimum rentals receivable under non- cancellable operating leases are as below:

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Within one year
After one year but not more than five years
Above 5 years

10,468.34
25,792.01

5,200.83
8,949.07

Note 33B. Capital commitments

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on other account
and not provided for

696.87

104.78

Note 33C. Contingent Liabilities

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Contingent Liabilities
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Note 34. Related Party Disclosures
Disclosures of transactions with Related Parties are as under:

A. Description of Related Parties

Nature of relationship

Name

Joint Venture entities

Premsagar Infra Realty Private Limited
Genesis Parks LLP

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key management personnel or their relatives

Ventive Hospitality Limited {formerly known as ICC
Reality (India) Private Limited]

A2Z Online Service Private Limited

Coliving Stories Private Limited

Panchshil Tech Park Private Limited
Panchshil Infrastructure Holdings Private Limited
Bluerays Developers LLP

EON Kharadi Infrastructure Private Limited
Balewadi Techpark Private Limited

EON Hadapsar Infrastructure Private Limited
Genesis Parks LLP

Premsagar Infra Realty Private Limited

EON Hinjewadi Infra Private Limited
Finest-Vn Business Park Private Limited
Panchshil Realty & Developers Private Limited
Wakad Realty Private Limited

Welluraft Really Private Limiled

Punchshll Foundation

Brightside Techpark Private Limited

Le-Style Enterprise Private Limited

Lifestyle Interior LLP

P One Infrastructure Private Limited
Panchshil Hotels Private Limited

Balewadi Properties LLP

AS Realty & Infrastructure Private Limited
Fraction Industrial Park Private Limited

Shahenshah Properties Private Limited

Key Management Personnel

Sagar Ishwardas Chordia

Atul Ishwardas Chordia
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B. Transactions with Related Parties

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Sale of Service-Room ,Food & Beverage
A2Z Online Service Private Limited 91.78 38.62
Panchshil Infrastructure Holdings Private Limited 22,33 5,75
Eon Hinjewadi Infra Private Limited 7.53 0.09
Ventive Hospitality Limited [formerly known as ICC Reality {India) Private Limited] 0.84
Le-Style Enterprise Private Limited 3.15
P One Infrastructure Private Limited 0.09 0.15
Panchshil Hotels Private Limited 0.19 36,91
Wakad Realty Private Limited 0.16
Sales Of Construction Material
Lifestyle Interior LLP 11.65 1217
Rental income
Le-Style Enterprise Private Limited 330
Purchase of Services / Material
Lifestyle Interior LLP - 32.86
Panchshil Realty & Developers Private Limited 100.00]
Buy Back of Shares- Equity
Genesis Parks LLP 8,080.00
Premsagar Infra Realty Private Limited 8,080.00
Dividend paid
Genesis Parks LLP 9,106.22
Premsagar Infra Realty Private Limited 9,106.59
Reimbursement of expenses
A2Z Online Services Private Limited 13.89 33.45
Ventive Hospitality Limited [formerly known as ICC Reality (India) Private Limited] 12.30 65.48
Eon Hinjewadi Infra Private Limited 2,58
Panchshil Infrastructure Holdings Private Limited 833
Panchshil Techpark Private Limited 5.67
Asset Management Charges
A2Z Online Services Private Limited 432.23 400.18
Brokerage Expenses
A2Z Oniine Services Private Limited 721.88 1,767.29
Loan given
A2Z Online Services Private Limited 1,250.00 &,000.00
Balewadi Techpark Private Limited 14,250.00 -
Finest-Vn Business Park Private Limited 7.520.00| -
Brightside Techpark Private Limited « 6,000.00
Wellcraft Realty Private Limited 847.00 -
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Loan returned

A2Z Online Services Private Limited 2,000.00 6,000.00
Brightside Techpark Private Limited . 6,000.00
Balewadi Techpark Private Limited 11,100.00
Finest-Vn Business Park Private Limited 7,520.00
Panchshil Realty & Developers Private Limited 12,500.00
Shahenshah Properties Private Limited 50.00 =

Interest income

A2Z Online Services Private Limited 124.15 65.49
Balewadi Techpark Private Limited 776.34

Brightside Techpark Private Limited - 9.01
Finesl-Vi Business Park Private Limiled 490.53 -
Panchshil Realtv & Revelaners Private | imited 155 74 150000
Wellcraft Realty Pvt Ltd 45.82 -
shahenshah Properties Private Limited 2,27 4,59

CSR Spends

Panchshil Foundation 53.00] 22.44
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C. Balance outstanding as at year end

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Receivables
A2Z Online Services Private Limited 80.18 75.41
Panchshil Infrastructure Holdings Private Limited 11,91 12.39
EON Hinjewadi Infra Private Limited 2.46 0.10
Le-Style Enterprise Private Limited 17.39 17.30
Lifestyle Interior LLP 3.69 1.79
Panchshil Hotels Private Limited 0.22 43.60
P One Infrastructure Private Limited 0.44 034
Ventive Hospitality Limited [formerly known as ICC Reality (India) Private Limited} 0.99
Panchshil Tech Park Private Limited 0.66
Payables
A2Z Online Services Private Limited 41.52 38.69
Lifestyle Interior LLP 5.59 5.59
EON Hinjewadi Infra Private | imited .08
Ventive Hospitality Limited [formarly known as ICC Reality (India) Private Limited) 1.60 7.h2
Loans given
A2Z Online Services Private Ltd 750.00
Wellcraft Realty Pvt Ltd 847.00
Balewadi Techpark Private Limited 3,150.00
Panchshil Realty & Developers Private Limited 12,500.00
Shahenshah Properties Private Limited 50.00
Interest receivable on inter corporate deposit
A2Z Online Services Private Ltd 97.95
Balewadi Techpark Private Limited 11.14
Brightside Techpark Private Limited 810
Finest-Vn Business Park Private Limited 229.06 —
Panchshil Realty & Developers Private Limited 2,432.87 2,292.71
Shahenshah Properties Private Limited 9.61
Wellcraft Realty Private Limited 41.24 .

Transactions with key management personnel
The Company has not entered into any transaction with key management personnels.
Note - Receivable/ payable balances are disclosed net of taxes deducted at source, where applicable
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Note 35. Segment Reporting

The Board of Directors is the Chief Operating Decision Maker {CODM) and monitors the operating results of its business unils separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource

allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured consistently wilh profit or loss in the Financial Statements. The

Company's financing (including finance costs and finance income) is managed on a Company basis and is not allocated to operating segments. Further, certain Current taxes, deferred taxes and certain
financial assets and liabilities are also managed on a Company basis are not allocated to operating segments

The Company does not have any non-current i and any i in i and joint There are no non-current financial assets, income tax and deferred tax assets
outside India

For management purposes, the Company is organised into business units based on its products and services and has three reportable segments, as follows:

{i) Revenue from leasing - Revenue from leasing operations comprises of lease rentals from the properties given under lease

(i) Revenue from hotel operations - Revenue from hotel operation comprise of revenue from sale of room, food and beverages and allied services related to hotel operation, including income from

telecommunication and internet services

Year epded 31 March 2024

Particulars Commercial Leasing Hotel Total
Revenue
External customers 22,302.25 13,81021 36,112.46
Total revenue 22,302.25 13.810.21 36,112.46
Segment result 17,837.04 178.24 18,015.28
Segment Profit 17,837.04 178,24 15!01 5.28
Segment assets 50,396.96 35,295.05 85,692.01
Total A

of ssets 50, 396.95‘. 35,29_51)?_ = E5:§B ZE
Segment liabilities 18,341.56 4,494.11 22,83566
Total Liablilities 18,321 56 4,494,11 22,835.66
Depreciations 2,564.80 4,130.62 6,695 42
Capital Expenditure during the year 1,488.20 74.82 1,563.02
Year ended 31 March 2023
Particulars Commercial Leasing Hotel Total
Revenue
External customers 20,12693 12,547.39 32,674 32
Total revenue 20,126.53 12,547.39 _32.57132
Segment result 1591357 {1,800,13} 14,113.44
Segment Profit 1591357 {1,800.13] 14,113.44
Segment Assets 44,431.13 39,780.46 84,21159
Total Assets 44,431.13 39,780.46 84,211.59
Segment Liabilities 15,125.78 5,77217 20,897.95
Total Liabilities 15,125.78 577217 20.897.95
Depreciations 2,38884 5,716.48 8,105.32
Capital Expenditure during the year 242835 378.33 2,806.68

to fl d in the financial statements
Reconciliation of profit March 31, 2029 March 31, 2023
Segment profit 18,015.28 14,113.44
Finance income 2,96547 2,825.56
Other finance costs {5,053 46) (4,807.95)
Unallocated expenses (567.96) (305.01)
Unallocated income 202 50 253.59
Profit before tax 15.561.83 12,079.63
Reconciliation of assets March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Segment operating assets 85,692.01 84,211.59
Tax asset (net} p 68.75
Other unallocated assets 20,032.79 47.220.76
Total assets 1,05, 724,80 1,31,501.10
Reconciliation of liabiliti March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Segment operating liabilities 22,835.66 20,897.95
Deferred tax liability {net) 1,053.80 1,009.17
Income tax liability {net) 751.2% -
Borrowings 46,382.96 49,974 44
Other unallocated liabilities 14037 129.30
Total liabilities 71,164.04 72,010.86
of capital iture March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Segment capital expenditure 1,563.02 2,806.68
Other unallocated expenditure 448 65
Total capital expenditure 1,563.02 3,255.33

There were 3 customers in the commercial leasing segment (March 31, 2023- 3 customers) which exceeded 10% of the total revenue of the Company amounting to Rs. 15,013 lakhs {March 31, 2023
Rs. 13,367 lakhs). Further, revenues from external customers are entirely attributable to the Company's country of domicile
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Note 36. Fair values

Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments as of March 31, 2024

Measured at amortised | Measured at fair value

Particulars i Total fair vall
Cost through profit and loss Total carrying value otal fair value
~ Financial assets

Loans 14,753.97 - 14,753.97 14,753.97
Trade and other receivables 713.89] E 713.89 713,89
Cash and cash equivalents 2,031.69 2,031.69 2,031,69
Other bank balances 2,018.52 - 2,018.52 2,018,52
Other financial assets 3,822.58 . 3,822.58 3,822,58
Investments g . -
Total-Financial assets B 23,340.65 - 23,340.65 23,340.65
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 46,382.96 . 46,382.96 46,382.96
Trade and other payables 1,152.30 - 1,152.30 1,152,30
Other financial liabilities 13,432.57, . 13,432.57 13,432,57
Total-Financial llabilities 60,967.83 - 60,967.83 60.967.83

Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair vaiue of the Company’s financial instruments as of March 31, 2023

Measured at amortised | Measured at fair value | Total carrying value Total fair value
Particulars Cost through profit and loss

Financial assets

Loans 25,800.00 25,800.00| 25,800.00
Trade and other receivables 756,64 - 756.64 756.64
Cash and cash equivalents 1,251.45 | 1,251.45 1,251.45
Other bank balances 2,976.12 o 2,976.12 2,976.12]
Other financial assets 4,531.97 - 4,531.97 4,531.97
Investments - 7,183.61 7,183.61 7,183,61
Total Financial Assets 35,316.18 7.183.61 42,499.79 42,499.79
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 49,974.44 - 49,974.44 49,974 44
Trade and other payables 1,082.54 - 1,082.54 1,082.54
Cther financial liabilities 14,385.01 - 14,385.01 14,385.01
Total Financial liabilities 65,441.99 - 65,441.99 65,441.99

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, bank balances, trade receivables, trade payables and other financial assets/ liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the
short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values.

Fair value hierarchy

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s financial instruments measured at fair value after initial recognition and assets for which fair
value is disclosed:

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2024:

. . Value as on March 31, Quoted prices in active Significant observable Slgmﬁcan.t
Particulars Date of valuation 2024 markets inputs (Level 2) unobservable inputs
{Leve! 1) {Level 3)
Assets for which fair value is disclosed
Non-Current Assets:
investment properties March 31, 2024 1,58,057.00 . - 1,58,057.00
Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2023:
. . Value as on March 31, Quoted prices in active Significant observable Sngmfucan.t
Particulars Date of valuation 2023 markets inputs (Level 2) unobservable inputs
(Level 1) (Level 3)
Assets for which fair value is disclosed
Non-Current Assets:
Investment properties March 31, 2023 1,55,196,79 - - 1,55,196.79
Financial asset measured at fair value
Current investments:
Investments March 31, 2023 7.183.61 7,183.61 - =

There were no transfers between level 1, level 2 and level 3 during the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices in an active market. Mutual funds are valued at NAV declared as on year end date

Level 3 : Refer note 4 for unobservable inputs used for valuation of investment properties
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Note 37. Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise trade payables, borrowings and security deposits. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s
operations and to support its operations. The Company’s principal financial assets includes investments, trade receivables and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its
operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk:
interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk such as equity price risk and commodity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include borrowings and investments.

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

The sensitivity analysis have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt and the ratio of fixed-to floating interest rates of the debt are all constant as at March 31, 2024 and
March 31, 2023,

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk
of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term/ short-term debt obligations with floating interest rates. The Company has not hedged its exposure to
fluctuations in the interest rates on account of the insignificant impact of any changes in the interest rate to its operations.

Interest rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected the Company profit before tax is
affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

. . Effect on profit before tax
Currency Inrn::::l{ :‘:;;:a:p ™ ["For the Year ended | For the Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
INR +50 (73191) (171.98)
INR -50 231.91 171.98

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk
from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks, if any, investment in mutual fund and other financial instruments

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. The Company's exposure to credit risk is
influenced mainly by the individua! characteristics of each customer and the segment in which it works.

In case of fixed lease income, the billing is done in advance i.e. at the beginning of the month and for variable lease rent and other maintenance charges, the credit period provided is of 7
to 10 days. Thus there are no major trade receivable balances outstanding at the year end.

In case of hospitality business, credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk
management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment.
Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in note for fair values.

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether a trade receivable or a group of trade receivables is impaired. The Company recognises lifetime expected credit losses for all trade
receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction and which are due for more than six months. The expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to 12 month
expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition. The Company
uses a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix.

Asat 31 Mar 2024

Particulars Not due within 180 days # 180 days to 365 More than 365 More than 365 Total
days # days* days*
ECL rate 0% 0% 0% 0% 100%
Estimated total gross carrying amount 14,06 559.64 79.39 70.65 78.56 802.30)
ECL - Simplified approach - (0.19) (9.66) = (78.56) (88.41)
Net carrying amount 14.06 559.45 69.73 70.65 - 713.89|
As at 31 Mar 2023
Particulars Not due within 180 days 180 days to 365 More than 365 More than 365 Total
days days* days*
ECL rate 0% 0% 0% 0% 100%
Estimated total gross carrying amount 538,24 121,19 62.93 34,28 30.68 787.32
ECL - Simplified approach . - & 4 (30.68) (30.68}
Net carrying amount 538.24 121.19 62.93 34.28 - 756.64

* Provision is made for receivables where recovery is considered doubtful irrespective of due date. Where an amount is outstanding for more than 365 days the Company usually provides

for the same unless there is clear visibility of recovery.

# Provision is made even for cases where amount if outstanding for less than 365 days, if recovery is considered to be doubtful
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Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of
changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency).

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD & Euro exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the Company’s profit
before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities

[INR' in fakhs)

Currency Change in Rate For the Year ended | For the year ended
g March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
usD +5% (5.58) (5.64),
uUsD -5% 5.58 5.64
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at a reasonable price, The Company's finance department is responsible for
liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In addition, processes and polices related to such risk are overseen by Senior management. Management monitors the Company's
net liquidity position on a monthly and quarterly basis through its Senior management meeting and board meetings. They use rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows.

The Senior management ensures that the future cash flow needs are met through cash flow from the operating activities and short term borrowings from banks.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

As at March 31, 2024 On demand Less than 3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years More than 5 years Total
Borrowings 877.37, 2,710.39 25,329.66 17,654.42 46,571.83
Other financial liabilities- Security deposit 6,070.80 - -] 9,646.30 - 15,717.10Q
Trade Payables - 1,152.30] - - - 1,152.30
Other financial liabilities- Others - 107.89 292.61 - - 400.50|
Total 6,070.80 2,137.56| 3,003.00 34,975.96 17,654.42 63,841.73

As at March 31, 2023 On d d Less than 3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years More than 5 years Total
Borrowings - 21,064.34 2,106.95 13,760.79 13,261.04 50,193.13
Other financial liabilities- Security deposit 11,413.03 5.00 1.00 3,010.19 - 14,429.22
Trade Payables - - 1,082.54 1,082.54
Other financial liabilities- Others - 129.34 496,29 - - 625.63
Total 11,413.03 21,198.68 3,686.78 16,770.98 13,261.04 66,330.52

Note 38. Capital management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company, The primary
objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder
value,

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors the capital using gearing
ratio. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents,

Particulars As At 31-Mar-2024 As At 31-Mar-2023

Loans and borrowings 46,382.96 49,974.44
Less: cash and cash equivalents 4,050,21 4,227.57
Net debt {A) 42,332.75 45,746.87
Equity share capital 4,88 5.53
Other equity 34,555.88 59,484.71
Total capital (B) 34,560.76| 59,490.24
Capital and net debt {C=A+B) 76,893.51 1,05,237.11
Gearing ratio {(D=A/C) 55.05% 43.47%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing
loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements, Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have
been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.
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Note 39. Details of dues to Micro and Small enterprises as defined under MSMED Act, 2006

Details of dues to Micro and Small enterprises

. As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particular
2024 2023

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each
accounting year-

- Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises

{ Including capital creditors of Rs 30.84 Lakhs {March 31,2023 Rs.34.75 Lakhs)} 16316 L2

- Interest due on above”™ 873 489

The amuunt uf interest pald by the buver In terms of sectian 1h af the MSME At 210R alnng with tha
amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year,

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {which have been paid
but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the 7.76 1.92
MSMED Act 2006.*

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year. -

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance 18.41 6.81
as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006.*

* The interest has not been provided in the books of accounts,
Note 40. Corporate social responsibility

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a corporate social responsibility {CSR) committee has been formed by the Company. The areas for CSR activities are the activities
mentioned in the Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013. Amount spent during the year on activities which are specified in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013 are as mentioned
below :

Particulars For the period ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
{a) Gross amount required to bie spent by the Group 105.14 44.83
during the year
(b) Amount approved by the Board to be spent during 106.00 44.88
the year

() Amount spent during the year ;
ilCanstruction/acquisition of any asset -
i)On purposes other than (i) above 106.00 44,88
(d) Details related to amount spent :
i)Contribution to Public Trust - -
ii}Contribution to Charitable Trust 106.00 44.88
(e) Shortfall at the end of the year - -
{f) Total of previous years shortfall - -

(f) Reason for shortfalt NA A
- Educational & medical|Educational & medical
(g} Nature of CSR activities o ——
EXPEnses lexpenses
il t i 6 bt
(h) Deltal s of related party transactions, e.g., ) Contribution ta corittition il
contribution to a trust controlled by the company in Panchshil  Foundation

Panchshil  Faundatian

relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant Accounting |charitable trust And R
charitable trust

Standard Viloo Poonawalla Trust

Note 41. Particulars of unhedged foreign currency exposure as at the balance sheet date

As at 31-Mar-2024 As at 31-Mar-2023
Particulars Amount in foreign Amount in INR (in Amount in foreign | Amount in INR (in
currency {in lakhs) lakhs) currency (in lakhs) lakhs)
Payables
usD 1.34] 111.57 181 148.33

* Amount is below the rounding off norms adopted by the Company.
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Note 42, D ep to Employ

A. Defined benefit plans:

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan. Under the gratuity plan, every employee who has completed at least five years of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days of last drawn salary for each completed

yaar of service. The scheme Is non-fundad,

March 31, 2024 : Changes in defined benefit obligation

Gratuity cost charged to statement of profit and loss

Remeasurement gains/{losses) in other comprehensive income

Actuarial changes

Actuarial changes

subsetilincitded arising from arlsing from changes Experience  Sub-total included
April 1, 2023 Service cost Interest expense in statement of changes in .g : ) g P B March 31, 2024
) in financial adjustments in OCt
profit and loss demographic N
. assumptions
assumptions

Gratuity 53.81 35.13 393 39.06 032 (24 84) {24.52) 68.35

Total benefit liability 53.81 35.13 393 39.06 0.32 (24.84) (24.52) 68.35
March 31, 2023 : Changes in defined benefit obligation

Gratuity cost charged to nt of profit and loss Remeasurgment gains/{lasses} in

April 1, 2022 Service cost Net interest éxpense Sub-total Included Actuarlal changes  Actuarial changes peri Sub-total March 31, 2023
In statement of arising from arising from changes  adjustments in OCI
profit and loss changes In in financial
4
assumptions
Gratuity 4063 28.10 2.15 30.25 008 (1.03) {16.12) (17.07) 53.81
Total benefit linbility 40.63 28.10 2.15 30.25 0.08 {1.03) {16.12) {17.07) 53.81
The principal ptions used in above defined benefit obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:
FUL LHE PEHOU Bnuey mdren 34, 2024 Har tha yaar Annen Maren 41, A4
Discounl rate 7.10% 7.30%
Future salary increase 8.00% 8.00%
Rate of Employee Turnover 40,00% 40.00%
Mortality Rate During Employment 1ALM{2012-14} ult JALM(2012-14) ult
B. Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:
Gratuity
(increase) / decrease in defined benefit obligation (Impact)
- For the period ended March 31, 2024 For the year ended March 31, 2023
Sensitivity level
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs
Discount rate 1% increase 66.80 52.60
1% decrease 69.98 55.08
Future salary increase 1% increase 6931 5455
1% decrease 67.42 5309
Withdrawal rate 1% increase 6832 5379
1% decrease 68.39 53.84

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result
of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period. The sensitivity analysis are based on a change in a
significant assumption, keeping all other assumptions constant. The sensitivity analysis may not be representative of an actual change in the
defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions would occur in isolation from one another.

The followings are the expected future benefit payments for the defined benefit

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Within the next 12 months {next annual reporting period) 1.80 011
Between 2 and 5 years 4130 2637
Beyond S years 3399 29.83
Total expected payments 77.09 56.31
Weighted average duration {in years) of defined plan {based on di cash flows)

For the period ended March 31, 2024 For the year ended March 31, 2023

Particulars

4.24 491

Gratuity
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Note 43

The Company has imported property, plant and equipment under EPCG scheme and availed exemption of custom duty liability on imported material amounting to Rs. 5,255.37 lakhs as per the notification no. 97/2004 dated

19, 2004 (as ded from time to time} issued by the Central Government in exercise of powers conferred under section 25(1) of the Customs Act, 1962 The export obligation under the scheme against this savings
comes to Rs. 31,532 20 lakhs. As on balance sheet date, the balance obligation yet to be fulfilled is Rs. 17,733 16 Iakhs (previous year: Rs. 24,527.09 lakhs). In accordance with Ind AS 20, the duty saved is capitalized and Rs
1,134.44 lakhs (previous year: Rs. 763.01 lakhs} is recognized as incentive received which has been reduced from depreciation charge for the year, on account of proportionate fulfillment of the export obligation. The Company
will account for the remaining incentive received in the books of account as and when such export obligation is fulfilled

Note 44. Ratios

Particulars Numerator Denominator As at As at % Increase/ Remarks
March 31,2024 March 31,2023 -decrease in ratio
(a) Current ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 142 077 85%|Ratio has increased on account
of ICDs given
(b} Debt-equity ratio Total Debt Shareholder’s Equity 134 0.84 60%Ratio has improved on account

of repayment of borrowings and
increase inreserves

{c) Debt service coverage ratio Earnings for debt service = Net Debt service = Interest + 082 186 -56%|Variance attributed to
profit after taxes + Non-cash Principal Repayments repayment of Term loan
operating expenses+Interest

{d) Return on equity ratio et Profits after toxes Average Shareholder’s Equity 23.50% 15.02%| 56%|The improvement in ratio

attributed to increased revenue
compared to last year

(e} Inventory turnover ratio Cost o@ods sold Average Inventory 6.04 4.55 - 33% Improveme_nl in ratio attributed
to increased Sales compared to
last year.

(f} Trade receivables turnover ratio  |Net credit sales = Gross credit Average Trade Receivable 4911 5583 -12%|Variance less than 25%

sales - sales return

(g) Trade payables turnover ratio Net credit purchases = Gross credit|Average Trade Payables 8.65 7.02 23%|Variance less than 25%
purchases - purchase return

[h) Net capital turnover ratio Net sales = Total sales - sales Average working capital -39.72 -6 08 553%|Variance attributed to
return repayment of Term loan
{i) Net profit ratio Net profit after tax Net sales = Total sales - sales 031 0,25 20%|Variance less than 25%
return
(i) Return on capital employed Earnings before interest and taxes |Capital Employed =Tangible 25,14%{ 15.29% 64%| The improvement in ratio
net worth+Total Indicates the company is more
debt+Deferred tax liability effective in utilizing the capital it

has invested over the years by
achieving a better balance
between cost and revenues

(k) Return on investment Interest income on fixed deposit|Average balance of 6.20% 6.25%)| -0.79%(Variance less than 25%
and realised and unrealised|investments in fixed deposits|
gain/loss on mutual funds and mutual Tunds

Note 45. Social Security Code
The Code on Social Security 2020 {‘the Code’) relating to employee benefits, during the employment and post-employment, has received Presidential assent on September 28, 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of
India. Further, the Ministry of Labour and Employment has released draft rules for the Code on November 13, 2020. However, the effective date from which the changes are applicable is yet to be notified and rules for quantifying

the financial impact are aiso not yet issued

The Company will assess the impact of the Code and will give appropriate impact in the financial statements in the period in which, the Code becomes effective and the related rules to determine the financial impact are
published.

Note 46. Benami Properties Note
The Company do not have any Benami property nor any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

Note 47. Relationship with Stuck off companies
The Company has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956

Note 48.
The Company does not have any undisclosed income which is not recorded in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as incame during the year (previous year) in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961)

Note 49. The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency ar Virtual Currency during the financial year

Note 50. The management confirms that the company is not declared as wilful defaulter (as defined by RBI Circular} by any Bank or Financial institution or other lender

Note 51. The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause {87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017
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Note 52. Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium:
(i) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries} with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
{a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries} or

{b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
during the financial year ended March 31, 2023

Following are the details of the funds advanced by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2024, to Intermediaries for further advancing to the Ultimate beneficiaries:

Name of the intermediary to which |Date of Funds advanced (Amount of funds advancad  |Date on which funds are  [Amount of fund further |Ultimate Beneficiary
the funds are advanced further advanced invested |advanced or loaned or
by Intermediaries to other [invested by such
i diaries or UIti ies to other
Renefiriaries intermediaries nr
Ultimate Beneficiailes
Balewadi Techpark Pvt Ltd 13-07-2023 11,100.00 21-09-2023 10,000.00 | Gramercy Business Hub Private
Umilted
51—65-16% 1,165 66 nterprise Bata bar[(s Fr}vale
Limited
Balewadi Techpark Pvt Ltd 15-03-2024 1,00000 15-03-2024 1,000.00 |Ocean Investment Private Trust
Balewadi Techpark Pvt Ltd 16-03-2024 500.00 18-03-2024 500,00 |A2Z Online Services Private Limited
Balewadi Techpark Pvt Ltd 21-03-2024 1,650.00 21-03-2024 1,650.00 |Enterprise Data Parks Private
Limited
Finest-Vn Business Park Pvt Ltd 05-06-2023 3,300.00 05-06-2023 3,300.00 |Junobo Hotels Private Limited *
Finest-Vn Business Park Pvt Ltd 05-06-2023 4,000.00 05-06-2023 3,984.53 |Junobo Hotels Private Limited *
Finest-Vn Business Park Pvt Ltd 20-12-2023 200.00 20-12-2023 100.00 {Juncbo Hotels Private Limited *
Solioho Frivate Limited 02-02-2024 6,856.97 02-02-2024 6,856,97 | Finest-Vn Business Park Pvt Ltd
Wellcraft Realty Pvt Ltd 04-10-2023 847.00 04-10-2023 847.00 |Panchshil Infrastructure Holdings

Private Limited

*The funds were used to acquire equity shares and debentures of Junobe Hotels Private Limited [rom third parties

The Company has complied with the relevant provisions of the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 {42 of 1999) and the Companies Act, 2013 for the above tr

Prevention of Money-Laundering Act, 2002 (15 of 2003}

1s and the tr

are not violative of the




Panchshil Corporate Park Private Limil

ted

Notes to the Ind AS finandal statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024
5 are in indian Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

’J\ﬂamn L
omplels ol the ¥ anad ul male b Yickany:

Mame of the entity

Registered Address

hip with the Company

ONE TOWER E YERWADA, Pune,
PUNE, Maharashtra, India, 411006

Mumber (€M)
Batewadi Techpark Pyt Lid S.NO.191A/2A/1/2 , TECH PARK U74990PN1997PTC105549 Enterprises owned or significantly
ONE, TOWER 'E' YERWADA, Pune, Influenced by key management
PUNE, Maharashtra, India, 411006 personnel o thair relatives
Finest-Vn Business Park Pvt Ltd 5.NO.191A/2A/1/2 TECH PARK U70109PN2022PTC214131 Enterprises owned or significantly

Influenced by key management
personnel or their relatives

Sobohao Private Limited

301, LANDMARK BUILDING, JUHU
TARA ROAD, SANTACRUZ (WEST),
Mumbai City, MUMBAI,
Maharashtra, India, 400049

U74999MH2020PTC349535

loint venture entity of Finest-Vn
Bukiness Park Private Limited

Wellcraft Realty Pvt Ltd

S,NO 191A/2A/1/2 CTS NO 2175
PART TECH PARK ONEAIRPORT
ROAD, Pune, PUNE, Maharashtra,
India, 411006

U70100PN2023PTC217572

Enterprises owned or signilicantly
influenced by key management
personnel or their relatives

(Gramercy Business Hub Private
Limited

Unit No. 4, 8th Floor, Building Q2,
Aurum Q Parc, Plot No. Gen 4/1,
TTC Industrial Area, Thane Belapur
Road, Ghansoli, Navi Mumbai,
Thane, Thane, Thane,

U45309MH2022PTC427832

Assodate Company of Balewadi
Techpark Private Limited

Enterprise Data Parks Private Limited

S No. 191A/2A/1/2, CTS No. 2175
Part Tech Park One Airport Road,
Pune City, Pune, Mune,
Maharashtra, India, 411006

U70100PN2020PTC196490

Subssidiary of Balewadi Techpark
Private Limited

Junobo latels Private Limitad

301, LAMDMARE BUILDIMG, JUHU
TARA ROAD, SANTACRUZ {WEST),
Mumbai City, MUMBAI,
Maharashtra, India, 100019

UBR204MMHI010FTCI10000

Accociate Company of §oboho
Privato Limited and Finext-Vn
Business Park Private Limited

Panchshll Infrastructure Holdhgs
'riczbn Liutrd

TRCH PARK ONF TOWFR 'F, NEXT
PRI DD AE 4 R W W JH
YEHWAUA, PUNE, Maharashtra,
India 4111

U45200PNZ005PTC143269

Coterprises uwied v sighificaitly
HHEIHEIH g kg B L
personnel or their relatives

Ocean Investment Private Trust

CHSL Sanpads, Navi Muinbai
400705

422 Online Services Private Limited |Tech Park One, Tower 'E, Next to | U74140PN2000PTC139217  |Enterprises owned or significantly
Don Basco School Off Airport Road, Influenced by key management
|ferwada, Pune, Maharashtra, personnel or their relatives
India, 411006
Fiat No. 1102,Progressive Highness | AAATO9001D NA

(i} The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
{a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
{b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

during the financial year ended March

31,2024 and March 31, 2023

Note 53, The Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trait {edit log} facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software except that audit trail feature is not enabled for certain changes made, if any, using privileged/ administrative access rights to the application (in case of SAP 54 HANA) and/or the underlying database {in case of SAP 54 HANA, SAP G N

and Opera).

The Company has not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tam pered with, in respect of accounting software(s) where the audit trail has been enabled
Further, the Company has used three software in the hotel business {Peoplesoft, Birchstreet and Micros] which are operated by third-party software service providers. In the absence of any observations on audit trail feature in the respective of
Service Organisation Controls {SOC] reports, the Company is unable to determine whether audit trail feature of these software was enabled and operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in these software or whether

there were any instances of the audit trail feature being tampered with

Note 54. Events after the reporting date
On August 12, 2024, EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited has acquired 50.001% shareholding in the Company by purchasing 24,398 shares from Premsagar Infra Really Private Limited
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